

By-Laws of
~~**The Colorado Tractor Pullers Association, Inc.**~~
The Colorado Truck and Tractor Pullers Association, Inc.

Article I. Name

~~The name of the Corporation shall be the Colorado Tractor Pullers Association.~~ **The name of the Corporation shall be the Colorado Truck and Tractor Pullers Association, Inc.**

Article II. Purpose

~~The purpose of the Colorado Tractor Pullers Association shall be to promote and stage tractor pulling events in the State of Colorado.~~ **The purpose of the Colorado Truck and Tractor Pullers Association, Inc., shall be to promote and stage truck and tractor pulling events.**

Article III. Membership

~~The members of the Colorado Tractor Pullers Association~~ **Colorado Truck and Tractor Pullers Association, Inc.**, shall consist of all persons who have expressed a desire to become a ~~member~~ **members** of the Association by paying the current annual membership dues as set by the ~~Board of Directors~~ **membership**. ~~Dues shall be as per attached schedule.~~

Voting rights will be activated once a vehicle has hooked two (2) times to the sled in a Colorado Truck and Tractor Pullers Association, Inc., (CTTPA) designated season in a CTTPA-sanctioned class. The activation applies to a maximum of two (2) members per vehicle.

CTTPA-sanctioned classes are defined as only the following classes: 1) Econo-Modified Small Block Tractors; 2) Econo-Modified Big Block Tractors; 3) Pro-Stock 4x4 Pickups; 4) Modified 4x4 Trucks; 5) Limited Diesel Tractors; 6) Super Stock Tractors; 7) Two-Wheel Drive Trucks; and 8) Modified Tractors.

Previous voting members without current vehicles may obtain voting rights activation by petitioning the Board Secretary requesting voting rights activation on a CTTPA-approved form. The Board will hear the petition at the next regularly scheduled board meeting.

Each **activated** member shall be entitled to one vote on any matter submitted to a vote of the membership. One-third of the **activated** members shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the membership.

Article IV. Directors

~~Nine Directors from three districts of the Colorado Tractor Pullers Association. Directors will serve three year terms with three new directors elected each year.~~ **The Directors of the Corporation shall consist of nine (9) Directors to be chosen from the membership of the Colorado Truck and Tractor Pullers Association, Inc., which Directors shall serve a three (3) year term with the terms of the Directors to be so staggered that three (3) new Directors shall be elected each year. Vacancies on the Board of Directors shall be filled by the remaining Directors for such unexpired term. ~~Each competing class shall have at least one (1) representative on the Board of Directors.~~ *(This clause deleted in 2005 General Meeting.)***

A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors.

Article V. Officers

~~The officers of the Colorado Tractor Pullers Association~~ **Colorado Truck and Tractor Pullers**

~~Association, Inc., shall be duly elected from the Board of Directors and consist of a President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer.~~ **consist of a President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. The Secretary and Treasurer can be one and the same individual. The President and Vice President shall be elected from the Board of Directors, nominated and voted on by the general body. The president shall serve a two-year term, elected in odd number years. The vice president shall serve two-year term, elected in even number years. The Secretary and Treasurer shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.** The Executive Board shall consist of President, Secretary and Treasurer.

Article VI. Meetings

~~Regular meetings of the Colorado Tractor Pullers Association shall take place when called by the President.~~ **The annual meeting and banquet of the members of the Colorado Truck and Tractor Pullers Association, Inc., shall be in November or December as determined by the Board of Directors. Special meetings of the Colorado Truck and Tractor Pullers Association, Inc., shall meet at such time and place as determined by the President.**

The President shall set the time and place of meetings of the Board of Directors as necessary.

Article VII. Association Control

~~The Colorado Tractor Pullers Association shall perpetually be controlled by the Board of Directors and it's duly elected officers, who shall perpetually control the official pulling device.~~

The Board of Directors shall direct the affairs of the Colorado Truck and Tractor Pullers Association, Inc.

Article VIII. Office Location

~~The home office of the Colorado Tractor Pullers Association~~ **Colorado Truck and Tractor Pullers Association, Inc., shall be at the office of determined by the Secretary of the Corporation.**

Article IX. Revenues

~~The Colorado Tractor Pullers Association~~ **Colorado Truck and Tractor Pullers Association, Inc., shall retain all monies paid to the Corporation as operating capital. The annual dues shall be set annually for the membership at the annual meeting of the membership. Dues shall be collected on an annual meeting to annual meeting basis. Only members whose dues are currently paid can vote on any question at any meeting of the Association.** ~~be a non-profit association and shall retain a maximum operating capital not to exceed \$2,000.00 unless this amount proves to be inadequate or excessive.~~

Article X. Distribution of Assets Upon Dissolution

In the event of the dissolution of the Corporation, after the payment of all outstanding debts, all the net assets shall be distributed to a charitable organization selected by the Board which is exempt under the provisions of Section 1 501(c)(3), Income Tax Regulations as amended.

Article XXI. Sub-Let Fees

Rental or lease fees for the use of lease equipment or salaries for employees of the Corporation shall be as per attached schedule as approved set by the Board of Directors.

Article XI. Annual State Pull

~~The Colorado State Championship Tractor Pull shall be an annual event to be held at the decision of the Board.~~

Article XII. NTPA Directors

~~The NTPA Directors shall be the President and one other Director elected from the body of Directors.~~

Article ~~XIII~~XII. Change of By-Laws

Articles of By-Laws cannot be changed except by majority vote of ~~membership of the Colorado Tractor Pullers Association~~ members present of the Colorado Truck and Tractor Pullers Association, Inc., at an annual meeting of the membership or at a special meeting called especially for such purpose by the President. Notification of pending by-law changes will be sent to the membership twenty-one (21) days in advance of special meeting.

Article ~~XIV~~. By-Law Changes

~~Any proposed changes of the by-laws of this organization shall be submitted to the Board of Directors for their action.~~

Article XIII. Deposits and Checks

All funds of the Colorado Truck and Tractor Pullers Association, Inc., will be deposited to the credit of the Corporation in such bank or other depository as the Board of Directors may select and all checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by the Board of Directors.

Article XIV. Rules

The Board of Directors of the Corporation shall be responsible for writing and approving all rules governing safety and operation of contest. Rules concerning safety will be at the Board's discretion and may take effect immediately.

Article XV. Meeting Points

All paid members of the Association will receive 20 points for attending annual meetings and 20 points for attending special meetings. These points will be assigned to the vehicle and not the driver. Unusual circumstances and exceptions will be taken into consideration by the Board of Directors whose ruling will be final.

Red Text delineates amendments to original By-Laws in 1998.

Blue Text delineates amendments to By-Laws in 2005.

Green Text delineates amendments to By-Laws in 2007.

Strikeout delineates deletions to original By-Laws.